

## CURRICULUM VITAE (CVA)

**IMPORTANT – The Curriculum Vitae cannot exceed 4 pages. Instructions to fill this document are available in the website.**

### Part A. PERSONAL INFORMATION

CV date	January, 2024
---------	---------------

Family name	Viejo Almanzor	First name	Carmen
Gender (*)	female	Birth date	27/08/1983
Social Security, Passport, ID number	48821669-Y		
e-mail	cviejo@uco.es	URL Web	
Open Researcher and Contributor ID (ORCID) (*)	0000-0003-4456-4767		

### A.1. Current position

Position	Associate Professor		
Initial date	01/2021		
Institution	University of Córdoba		
Department/Center	Department of Psychology.	Faculty of Education and Psychology.	
Country	Spain	Teleph. number	+34 699694171
Key words	Interpersonal relationships, dating, dating violence, romantic competence		

### A.2. Previous positions (research activity interruptions, see call)

Period	Position/Institution/Country/Interruption cause
14/06/2022– 16/09/2022 17/09/2022-11/04/2023	<i>Interruption for Pregnancy and Maternity leave 2</i>
26/02/2021 - actually	Associate Professor
23/03/2020- 9/10/2020	<i>Interruption for Maternity Leave 1</i>
10/12/2018 – 25/02/2021	Senior Lecturer. University of Cordoba. Spain
01/10/2015 – 09/12/2018	Lecturer. University of Cordoba. Spain
01/02/2013 – 30/09/2015	Teaching Assistant. University of Cordoba. Spain
11/01/2013-25/01/2013	Teaching Assistant. CEU University. Spain
09/01/2008 – 31/08/2012	FPUgranter. University of Cordoba. Spain.

### A.3. Education

	PhD, Licensed, Graduate	University/Country	Year
Degree- Primary Teaching Education		Univ. of Sevilla	2004
Degree- Psicopedagogy		Univ. of Sevilla	2007
Master- Psychological Research and Intervention on Justice, Health and Social Welfare		Univ. of Córdoba	2009
PhD- Phd in Applied Psychology, Thesis cum laude		Univ. of Córdoba	2012
Diploma of University Expert on University Teaching		Univ. of Córdoba	2013
Diploma of University Expert on Maltreatment and Gender-based violence: a multidisciplinary approach		UNED	2014

### Part B. CV SUMMARY

My lines of research deal with Interpersonal Relationships in Adolescence, particularly romantic relationships and the risks and benefits derived from them. I develop this line in the Laboratory of Studies for *Convivencia* and Prevention of Violence (LAECОВI), of which I have been a member since 2008. After obtaining a research contract under a European Project at the University of Cordoba (2008) and a grant from the Ministry for University Teacher Training (FPU) (2009-2012), I finished my PhD with an International Thesis (2012), which won the first prize for theses from the Ministry of the Presidency of the Andalusian Regional Government (Andalusian Studies Centre). I have participated in regional, national and European research projects, I have acted as Co-PI of the Spanish team of a European Project (2015-2017), I have recently completed a FEDER-UCO project (2022-2023), and I am currently directing a national R+D+i project of the Ministry (2022-2024). In all cases, the evaluations have been very positive, highlighting the role of the psychoeducational and social interventions that have resulted from them. I have also led a contract and a transfer project aimed at transferring research results. I have carried out several research stays in international centres (UK, Italy, Chile) working with different research teams. I have published several publications in national and international journals, some of them as a result of the stays and in collaboration with international colleagues, obtaining the *Leocadio Martín*



*Mignorance award* (2016) for the best research in social sciences. My teaching activity has focused on the psychology of adolescent development and learning; I have been director and co-director of Final Degree Projects, Master's Degree Projects, and PhD Theses (some still in progress). I am Visiting Professor at the University of Sacro Cuore di Milano, where I participate in the international teaching of the Psychology degree. I am the coordinator of the Teaching Innovation Group UCO-GID062, at the University of Cordoba. I am director of the Master's Degree in Psychology Applied to Education and Social Welfare. I am a member of the Editorial Committee of the journal *Psychology, Society & Education*, and of the Evaluation Committee of national and international journals. I am an external evaluator for the Spanish National Research Agency and the European Research Council. I have been awarded two six-year research periods and two five-years teaching periods.

## Part C. RELEVANT MERITS

### C.1. Publications

#### C.1.1- Peer-reviewed papers

- Sánchez-Zafra, M., Gómez-López, M., Ortega-Ruiz, R., & **Viejo, C.** (2024). The association between dating violence victimization and the well-being of young people: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *Psychology of Violence*. Advance online publication. <https://doi.org/10.1037/vio0000499>
- Gómez-López, M., **Viejo, C.**, Romera, E. M., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2022). Psychological Well-Being and Social Competence During Adolescence: Longitudinal Association Between the Two Phenomena. *Child Indicators Research*, 15(3), 1043-1061. <https://doi.org/10.1007/s12187-021-09899-w>
- Viejo, C.**, Leva, B., Paredes, J., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2020). Bullying and psychological dating violence: the relation between two aggressive peer-behaviours. *Psicothema*, 32: 533-540. F.I.: 2.632. **JCR Q1**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.7334/psicothema2019.223>
- Viejo, C.**, Toledano, N., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2020). Romantic Competence and Adolescent Courtship: The Multidimensional Nature of the Construct and Difference by Age and Gender. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 17: 5223. F.I.: 2.849. **JCR Q1**.doi: <https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17145223>
- Gómez-López, M., **Viejo, C.**, & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2019). Psychological Well-Being During Adolescence: Stability and Association with Romantic Relationships. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 10:1772. F.I.: 2.067. **JCR Q2**.doi: <https://10.3389/fpsyg.2019.01772>
- Gómez-López, M., **Viejo, C.**, & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2019). Well-Being and Romantic Relationships: A Systematic Review in Adolescence and Emerging Adulthood. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 16: 2415. F.I.: 2.849. **JCR Q1**. doi: <http://dx.doi.org/10.3390/ijerph16132415>
- Zych, I., **Viejo, C.**, Vila, E., & Farrington, D. P. (2019). School Bullying and Dating Violence in Adolescents: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. *Trauma, Violence, & Abuse*. 1-16. F.I.:6.325. **JCR D1**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.1177/1524838019854460>
- Viejo, C.**, Gómez-López, M., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2018). Adolescents' Psychological Well-Being: A Multidimensional Measure. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 16: 2415. F.I.: 2.468.**JCR Q1**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph15102325>
- Viejo, C.**, Monks, C., Sánchez-Rosa, M., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2018). Attachment Hierarchies for Spanish Adolescents: Family, Peers and Romantic Partner figures. *Attachment and Human Development*, 21: 551-570. F.I.: 2.215. **JCR Q2**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.1080/14616734.2018.1466182>.
- Viejo, C.**, Rincón, P., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2018). Physical violence in young Chilean couples: Association with the relationship quality. *Children and Youth Services Review*, 93: 217-225. F.I.: 1.684. **JCR Q1**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.childyouth.2018.07.021>
- Strohmeier, D., Barrett, M., Bora, C., Caravita, S. C., Donghi, E., Dragoti, E., ... & **Viejo, C.** (2017). Young People's Engagement with the European Union. *Zeitschrift für Psychologie*, 225: 313-323. F.I.: 1.83. **JCR Q2**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.1027/2151-2604/a000314>
- Viejo, C.**; Monks, C., Sánchez, V., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2016). Physical Dating Violence in Spain and the United Kingdom and the Importance of Relationship Quality. *Journal of Interpersonal Violence*, 31: 1453-1475. F.I.: 1.94. **JCR Q2**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.1177/0886260514567963>
- Ureña, J., Romera, E., Casas, J.A., **Viejo, C.**, & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2015). Psychometric properties of Psychological Dating Violence Questionnaire: A Study with Young Couples. *International Journal of Clinical and Health Psychology*, 15: 52-60. F.I.: 2.217. **JCR Q2**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijchp.2014.07.002>
- Viejo, C.**, Ortega-Ruiz, R., & Sánchez, V. (2015). Adolescent Love and Well-Being: the Role of Dating Relationships for Psychological Adjustment. *Journal of Youth Studies*, 18: 1219-1236. F.I.: 1.44. **JCRQ1**. DOI: <https://doi.org/10.1080/13676261.2015.1039967>
- Viejo, C.** (2014). Physical dating violence: towards a comprehensible view of the phenomenon. *Infancia y Aprendizaje*, 37: 785-815. F.I.: 0.52. **JCR Q4**. DOI: <https://doi.org/10.1080/02103702.2014.977110>

Viejo, C., Sánchez, V., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2014) Physical Dating Violence: the potential understating value of a bi-factorial model. *Anales de Psicología*, 30: 171-179. F.I.: 0.87. **JCR Q4**. doi: <https://doi.org/10.6018/analesps.30.1.141341>

Viejo, C., Sánchez, V., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2013). The importance of adolescent Dating Relationships. *Psicothema*, 25: 43-48. F.I.: 1.34. **JCR Q2**. DOI: <https://doi.org/10.7334/psicothema2012.99>

### **C.1.2. Books**

Viejo, C. & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2023). *Enamorarse en la adolescencia. Aprendizaje Emocional en el Cortejo Juvenil*. Madrid. Ed. Síntesis.

### **C.1.3. Books chapters**

Viejo, C., Gómez-López, M., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2019). **Europe 2038: The Voice of Spanish Youth**. En D. Strohmeier y H. Tenenbaum (Eds.), *Young People's Visions and Worries for the Future of Europe: Findings from the Europe 2038 Project* (pp- 97-112). London, UK: Taylor and Francis Group.

Viejo, C., Gómez-López, M., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2018). **Gestionar el cortejo y las relaciones sentimentales adolescentes: un enfoque psicoeducativo**. En O. Nail y C. Monereo (Eds.), *Gestión y liderazgo en el ámbito de la convivencia escolar* (pp. 135-155). Santiago, Chile: Ril Editores. ISBN: 978-956-01-0580-6

Viejo, C., Vega-Gea, E., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2017). **Riesgos de la violencia en el cortejo juvenil: educación sentimental y prevención de actitudes sexistas**. En A.J. Rodríguez-Hidalgo y R. Ortega-Ruiz (Eds.), *Acoso escolar, ciberacoso y discriminación: educar en diversidad y convivencia* (pp. 43-57). Madrid, España: Catarata. ISBN: 978-84-9097-244-1

Viejo, C., Ortega-Rivera, J., & Ortega-Ruiz, R. (2016). **Violencia ligada a los procesos de cortejo juvenil**. En F. Córdoba-Alcaide, R. Ortega-Ruiz, y O. Nail-Kroyer (Eds.), *Gestión de la convivencia y afrontamiento de la conflictividad escolar y el bullying* (135-150). Santiago de Chile: RIL editores. ISBN: 978-956-01- 0282-9.

## **C.2. Congress**

Viejo, C; Sánchez-Zafra, M., Ortega-Ruiz, R. *Cyberdating violence in adolescent couples: interpretation of violence and relation with relationship quality*. As part of the Simposio: Young People's Online Behaviors Inside and Outside Relationships. Chair: Dr. Daphne van de Bongardt. **ISSBD Congresss**. Lisbon, June 2024.

Toledano, N., Viejo, C., y Ortega-Ruiz, R. *Desarrollo de la Competencia Social y Sentimental en la adolescencia*. Oral presentation IX World Conference on Violence in School, VIII Congreso Estatal de Convivencia Escolar. Seville, October, 2023.

Viejo, C. & Ortega-Ruiz, R. *Relaciones erótico-sentimentales adolescentes: un reto psicoevolutivo y educativo*. As part of the Invited Simposio: Retos y riesgos en las experiencias erótico-sentimentales adolescentes. Chair: Carmen Viejo. **Congreso Internacional de Psicología y Educación**. Valencia, Junio 2023.

Viejo, C. *Interpersonal competences, couples with good quality, and personal wellbeing*. Chair of Invited Simposio. **Congreso Internacional de Psicología y Educación**. Córdoba (on-line), Junio 2021.

## **C.3. Research projects**

### **C.3.1. IP**

**Proceso Psicoevolutivo y Educativo del Cortejo Adolescente: Competencia Sentimental y Ajuste Social**. *Entidad financiadora*: Junta de Andalucía. Convocatoria Proyectos I+D+i del Programa FEDER Andalucía 2020. *I.P.*: Carmen Viejo. *Cantidad solicitada*: 69.763€. *Fecha de inicio-fin*: 01/01/2022-30/03/2023.

**Retos y riesgos en las experiencias erótico-sentimentales adolescentes: la multidimensionalidad de la Competencia Sentimental en el marco del Cortejo (PID2020-119855RA-I00)**. *Entidad financiadora*: Ministerio de Ciencia e Innovación. Proyectos de I+D+I. Retos de Investigación. Convocatoria: 2020. *I.P.*: Carmen Viejo. *Importe de la subvención*: 88.330€. *Fecha de inicio-fin*: 01/09/2021-30/08/2024.

**Europe 2038: The Voice of the Youth (564710-CITIZ-1-2015-1-AT-CITIZ-CIV)**. *Entidad financiadora*: Comisión Europea: Programa Europa con los ciudadanos 2014-2020; Capítulo 2: Compromiso democrático y participación ciudadana; Action 2.3: Proyectos de la sociedad civil; Convocatoria 2015; decisión de subvención No2015 - 0946/001-001; Universidad de Córdoba. Convocatoria: 2015. *I.P. del equipo Español*: Rosario Ortega y Carmen Viejo. *Importe de la subvención*: 19.000 €. *Fecha de inicio-fin*: 01/01/2016-30/06/2017.

### **C.3.2. Researcher**

**Competencia socio-moral y ecología del grupo de iguales en la violencia entre escolares: un estudio longitudinal y transaccional (PSI2016-74871-R)**. *Entidad financiadora*: Ministerio de Economía, Industria y Competitividad (MINECO). Plan Estatal 2016-2019 de Investigación Científica y Técnica y de Innovación. Convocatoria: 2016. *I.P.*: Eva Romera (Universidad de Córdoba). *Importe de la subvención*: 42.350€. *Tipo de participación*: Investigadora. *Fecha de inicio-fin*: 30/12/2016-29/12/2020.

**Parejas y redes de iguales en la adolescencia: un programa de prevención de la violencia en las relaciones sentimentales (EDU2013-44627-P)** *Entidad financiadora*: Ministerio de Economía y Competitividad. Programa Estatal de Investigación, Desarrollo e Innovación Orientada a los Retos de la Sociedad. Convocatoria: 2013. *I.P.*:



Virginia Sánchez Jiménez (Universidad de Sevilla). *Importe de la subvención:* 36.300€. Tipo de participación: Investigadora. *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 01/01/2014-31/12/2016.

**El afrontamiento del cyberbullying: análisis de las estrategias utilizadas y evaluación de su impacto (P10-SEJ-06156)** *Entidad financiadora:* Consejería de Innovación, Ciencia y Empresa. Junta de Andalucía. *I.P.:* Joaquín Antonio Mora Merchán (Universidad de Sevilla). *Importe de la subvención:* 28.750€. *Tipo de participación:* investigadora. *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 15/03/2011-15/03/2014.

**Violencia escolar y juvenil: los riesgos del cortejo violento, la agresión sexual y el cyberbullying (PSI2010-17246)** *Entidad financiadora:* Plan Nacional I+D+i. Ministerio de Ciencia y Tecnología. *I.P.:* Rosario Ortega Ruiz (Universidad de Córdoba). *Importe de la subvención:* 90.750€. *Tipo de participación:* Investigador. *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 01/01/2011-31/12/2013.

**Violencia y cortejo juvenil: un estudio psicoeducativo (SEJ2007-60673).** *Entidad Financiadora:* Ministerio de Ciencia e Innovación. *I.P.:* Rosario Ortega Ruiz (Universidad de Córdoba). *Importe de la subvención:* 58.560€. *Tipo de participación:* Investigador. *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 01/10/2007-30/09/2012.

#### C.4. Contracts, technological or transfer merits

##### C.4.1. Leading

**Aprender a enamorarse en la adolescencia: un reto psicoeducativo (PPIT\_2022E\_026803).** Proyecto Propio de Investigación y Transferencia. *Entidad Financiadora:* Universidad de Córdoba *I.P.:* **Carmen Viejo** (Universidad de Córdoba). *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 28/12/2022-27/12/2025. *Importe de la subvención:* 907,79 €.

**Implementación y Evaluación de un programa de Prevención de la Violencia en el Cortejo e inicio de las Relaciones de Pareja en Educación Secundaria. Programa NoViCo. (SAC 12019153).** *Entidad Financiadora:* Consejería de Educación. Junta de Andalucía. *I.P.:* **Carmen Viejo** (Universidad de Córdoba). *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 01/01/2020-30/09/2020. *Importe de la subvención:* 15.096 €.

##### C.4.1. Member

**Ciberconvivencia: el programa ConRed. Realización de materiales didácticos para la prevención del acoso y el ciberacoso (12017258).** *Entidad Financiadora:* Consejería de Educación. Junta de Andalucía. *I.P.:* José Antonio Casas Bolaños (Universidad de Córdoba). *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 22/12/2017-22/04/2018. *Importe de la subvención:* 21.000€.

**Estudio de la competencia para la gestión de la vida social y su estabilidad en estudiantes de primaria y secundaria de Andalucía (PRY040/14).** *Entidad Financiadora:* Fundación Pública Andaluza Centro de Estudios Andaluces. Consejería de la Presidencia de la Junta de Andalucía. *I.P.:* Eva María Romera Félix (Universidad de Córdoba). *Fecha de inicio-fin:* 17/12/2014-30/08/2016. *Importe de la subvención:* 30.000€.

#### C.5. PhD thesis

*Violencia en la pareja adolescente como antecedente de la violencia de género: análisis de la psicogénesis de la dinámica violenta en relaciones interpersonales de intimidación afectiva.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz. Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Prevista de lectura: 2025

*Impacto de las redes sociales en las relaciones sentimentales adolescentes.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz. Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Prevista de lectura: 2025

*Factores protectores en el inicio de las primeras relaciones erótico-sentimentales: de camino hacia la construcción de la Competencia Sentimental.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz. Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Prevista de lectura: 2025

*Competencia sentimental en el cortejo adolescente y formación de las primeras parejas.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz. Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Prevista de lectura: 2024

*El amor romántico y los estereotipos machistas de género como factores de riesgo de la violencia de pareja en adultos de Bogotá (Colombia).* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Prevista de lectura: 2024

*La ruptura amorosa en la adolescencia. Claves para alcanzar un final feliz.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Prevista de lectura: 2024

*Violencia de Género y contextos de socialización. Un estudio retrospectivo con mujeres andaluzas.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Fecha de lectura: 26/05/2021. Calificación: *Cum Laude*. <https://helvia.uco.es/handle/10396/21427>

*Bienestar y Relaciones Sentimentales en Adolescentes Andaluces.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega Ruiz. Centro de defensa: Universidad de Córdoba. Fecha de lectura: 26/02/2020. Calificación: *Cum Laude*. <https://helvia.uco.es/xmlui/handle/10396/19671>

*El noviazgo adolescente y la participación en la Violencia entre iguales: un estudio en la adolescencia temprana.* Directoras: **Carmen Viejo** y Rosario Ortega-Ruiz. Centro de defensa: Universidad CEU Cardenal Herrera (Valencia). Fecha de lectura: 19/06/2017. Calificación: *Cum Laude*. <https://repositorioinstitucional.ceu.es/handle/10637/8574>.